
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213740 
 

 

E-mail: paul.bateman@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 6 May 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
 

 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 17 MAY 2022 AT 6.00 PM 
 

FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 

You can watch this meeting via this weblink:  
https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings  
 
If you are attending in person you will need to bring a portable device, such as a 
laptop or tablet to listen to and watch the meeting. You will also need to bring a 
headset/headphones. 

 

Members of the Committee: 

David Bretherton (Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti (Vice-
Chair) 
Ken Arlett 
Tim Bearder 
Victoria Haval 

Elizabeth Gillespie 
Lorraine Hillier 
Axel Macdonald 
Jo Robb 

Ian Snowdon 
Alan Thompson 

 
Substitutes 

vacancy 
Celia Wilson 
Sam Casey-Rerhaye 
Stefan Gawrysiak 

Alexandrine Kantor 
Mocky Khan 
Jane Murphy 
Caroline Newton 

Sue Roberts 
David Turner 
Kellie Hinton 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


  2 

 

1  Chair's announcements   
 

To receive any announcements from the chair and general housekeeping matters. 
 
2  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members. 
 
3  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 14) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the meeting 
held on Wednesday 16 March 2022. 
 
4  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.    
 
5  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn. 

 
6  Proposals for site visits   

 
7  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   
 

Development control applications 

 
 

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information 

 
All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number.  
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 

 

 
Summary index of applications 

 



  3 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page 

 
     
8  P21/S5302/FUL 

- 3 Beckley 
Close, 
Woodcote   

Proposed two storey dwelling and 
first floor extension to existing 
dwelling with associated parking and 
amenity areas (as amended by plans 
received 22 February 2022 to re-
plan the garden area and to include 
a kitchen window). 

P21/S5302/FUL 15 - 30 

 

     
9  P21/S3252/FUL 

- Hobbs Red 
Lion Moorings, 
Thameside, 
Henley on 
Thames   

Installation of an accessible boat 
mooring (as amended by plans 
including a reduction in the size of 
the floating pontoon and the loss of 
one finger jetty to allow for the 
mooring of boats closer to the river 
bank and not out into the river 
navigation, submitted 2 March 
2022). 

P21/S3252/FUL 31 - 50 

 

     
10  P20/S2504/FUL 

- 46 King 
James Way, 
Henley-on-
Thames   

Change of use of ground floor of 
existing building from residential to a 
mixed use of residential and 
childcare purposes and addition of a 
temporary wooden structure to the 
garden to provide a covered area. 

P20/S2504/FUL 51 - 60 

 

     
11  P22/S0023/HH - 

Pantiles, 
Elizabeth Road, 
Henley-on-
Thames   

Variation of conditions 3 (Plan of Car 
Parking Provision) and 5 (Drainage) 
on application P20/S4111/HH.  
Parking changed to 2 parking 
spaces on existing drive and 
submitting the details as shown on 
drawing CN30 drainage plan.    
(Proposed two storey side/rear 
extension and two new front dormer 
windows). 

P22/S0023/HH 61 - 68 

 



  4 

 

 

 

 



 1 

Minutes 

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

 

Planning Committee 

 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 16 MARCH 2022 AT 6.00 PM 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 

 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: David Bretherton (Chair), Peter Dragonetti (Vice-Chair), Ken Arlett, Elizabeth 
Gillespie, Victoria Haval, Lorraine Hillier, Axel Macdonald, Jane Murphy (as substitute for 
Ian Snowdon), Sam Casey-Rerhaye (as substitute for Jo Robb), and Alan Thompson 
Officers: Michael Flowers (Democratic Services Officer) and Paula Fox (Development 
Manager) 
 

Remote attendance:  
Councillors: David Bartholomew and David Rouane 
Officers:  Sharon Crawford (Planning Team Leader), Paul Lucas (Senior Planning Officer), 
Marc Pullen (Planning and Development Officer), Susie Royce (Broadcasting Officer), and 
Cathie Scotting (Major Applications Team Leader) 
External Officers: Michael Deadman and Jason Sherwood (Oxfordshire County Council) 
 
 

91 Chairman's announcements  
 
The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements. 
 

92 Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Tim Bearder, Jo Robb, and Ian 
Snowdon. 

 
The democratic services officer at the request of Councillor Snowdon, explained to the 
committee that Councillor Snowdon, following consultations with the democratic services 
manager, had been advised not to take part in application P19/S0720/O due to living at the 
boundary of the application site. 
 

93 Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 2 February 2022 
as a correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such. 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 2 

94 Declarations of interest  
 
Councillor David Bartholomew who was attending the meeting as a local ward member 
declared that he lived in the vicinity of application P21/S1389/O, although he stated there 
would be no direct impact on his property. Councillor Bartholomew had consulted with the 
democratic services manager prior to the meeting and received confirmation that he could 
attend the meeting in a non-committee member capacity and would therefore speak on the 
application as its local ward member. 
 

95 Urgent business  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

96 Proposals for site visits  
 
There were no proposals for site visits. 
 

97 Public participation  
 
The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak had been circulated 
to the committee prior to the meeting. 
 

98 P19/S0720/O - Land at Ladygrove, East Didcot  
 
The committee considered application P19/S0720/O for an outline planning application for 
a residential development comprising up to 750 dwellings (with up to 40% affordable 
housing provision), public open space comprising green infrastructure, community use, 
allotments and play areas, pedestrian and cycle links, landscaping and associated 
supporting infrastructure. Means of access to be determined via Hadden Hill (A4130). 
Access to NPR3 reserved for later consideration along with all other matters. (as revised 
by information received 22 January 2021 and updated Parameter Plan and Biodiversity 
Calculations received 5 May 2021). 

 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting. 
 
The planning officer explained that vehicle access was to be determined at the outline 
stage of the application. On the application site, it was explained that the area to the west 
was land owned by the council, with the area displayed in the middle of the application 
being the built development. Sites that were coloured green on the officer’s presentation 
indicated allotments, a community facility, and a play area. In addition, the planning officer 
confirmed that the masterplan was illustrative, and that drainage would now be on the 
other side of the road, adjacent to the golf course. It was noted that there had been a 
significant level of representation made from local residents, and a lot of work had been 
done regarding the drainage strategy in response to these concerns. At a high level 
strategy, the levels on the site sloped downwards from east to west, and there was also an 
existing carrier of water from the site.  
 
The committee were informed that the developers had confirmed they would provide the 
parkland with the first two-hundred and fifty dwellings, and the terms of the transfers of 
land ownership would be agreed prior to any commencement of works. Additionally, the 
town council was interested in taking control of the allotments and community centre. The 

Page 6



 3 

committee were also told that contributions would be received for offsite leisure facilities 
that were within Didcot. The planning officer also added that there had been a typo in the 
report at section 7.6. This was in relation to health and fitness where the figure was listed 
as ‘£14,6507’ but the correct figure was ‘£146,000’. 
 
The committee were then reminded that as this was an illustrative masterplan being 
presented, a detailed layout would be presented to the committee at a later date. With 
specific reference to the southern area of the application, this was described as higher 
density, with some lower density housing on the edges of the border, and where existing 
properties were already located. The lower density would also be towards the area of 
natural beauty and beyond. The design code that would take forward the paraments would 
also be subject to a public consultation, to allow relevant parties to have an input on the 
process.  
 
The planning officer concluded that the site was allocated, and with seven-hundred and 
fifty dwellings, it would provide much needed housing, with a combination of mixed and 
forty percent affordable housing. Confirmation was also given that public consultations 
would continue for key elements for the scheme and key infrastructure would be delivered. 
Subject to the conditions recommended, officers therefore recommended the application 
for approval. 
 
Rebecca Fenn-Trip, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. Ms Fenn-Tripp was 
accompanied by Peter Jones (Technical Team), James Yeoman (Agent), and Leigh Abley 
(Consultant) who were available to respond to any questions from the committee. 
 
The committee asked the speaker whether they would be willing to have a condition added 
for the preservation of the two oak trees. The agent responded that while they were aware 
of the interest in the trees, they viewed them as already being protected, but while they 
would seek to preserve them, one could have to be removed. 
David Rouane, the ward councillor, spoke to the application. 
 
In relation to NPR3, Jason Sherwood explained that this was not tied to the Ladygrove 
East development, but was a project in itself. They were looking to complete the 
preliminary design towards the back end of the year, with planning permission to be 
sought in early 2023, and construction with a completion in 2025. The county council 
officer confirmed that funding was already in place, and the county was both behind the 
scheme, and intended to deliver it. 
 
The planning officer and OCC officers were asked whether the proposed road for the 
A4130 a T-Junction would be. The Growth Manager (OCC) responded that there was 
likely to be a roundabout of some form, but this would require careful consideration for the 
timing of such a traffic control measure and whether mitigation work was required. The 
committee asked that in relation to NPR3, when this would be finished so that a complete 
road would be built around Didcot. The response from officers was that the project had a 
total completion timeline for the middle of 2026, but the sectioned delivery and finer detail 
were not available until the contractor had been spoken to. 
 
The committee requested clarification on whether the two proposed ponds would be within 
the applicant’s land, or if it was within council ownership. The response from the officer 
was that ponds were in the applicant’s land. 
 
The committee asked how enforceable the condition was which related to a permanent 
health centre before a thousand dwellings were completed, as the committee highlighted 

Page 7



 4 

the difficulties that had occurred with the Great Western Park development. The officer 
responded by explaining that healthcare provision was a complicated matter, and work 
was currently being done for a new practise at Great Western Park which involved now 
secured land and relevant S106 triggers. 
 
The committee asked a series of questions relating to traffic calming measures, including 
whether any would be placed in Abingdon Road and for officer views on the most effective 
traffic calming measures that could be used. The county council officer responded that 
they were looking for 20mph speed limits for the discussed road and also noted that 
humps could also be introduced to contribute to a lower speed limit along the road. 
 
A question was asked by the committee seeking confirmation on whether the Oak Tree 
Health Centre could cope with taking on extra patients, and subsequently if they could not, 
would a new GP be opened in Didcot Northeast. The response was that the Clinical 
Commissioning Group had stated that all local practises were at full capacity, and there 
was an urgency to get a new healthcare centre opened in Great Western Park as a result. 
The planning officer confirmed that the council would support a new site, but it would be 
for the health practises and the CCG to implement any new site. 
 
The committee asked a question regarding the biodiversity net gain on the site. The 
planning officer responded that the two per cent net gain was a prediction, but due to its 
marginal figure, it would be monitored for a number of years should permission be granted. 
A further question was asked on the issue regarding risks of flooding in the site. The 
planning officer commented that high level drainage work would be undertaken, and the 
addition of swells and ditches around the site, and with an added watercourse, would all 
contribute to the minimisation of flood risks. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant outline planning permission was declared carried 
on being put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/S0720/O subject to the 
following conditions: 

A. The completion of a S106 agreement to secure affordable housing and all the 

infrastructure as outlined in the report, and 

B. The following conditions: 

1. Commencement – Outline with Reserved Matters 

2. Approved plans 

3. Land use budget 

4. Submission and Content of Reserved Matters 

5. Phasing 

6. Design Code 

7. Housing Mix and Delivery Document 

8. Tree Protection (Detailed) 

9. Hours of operation – construction/demolition sites 

10. Construction Management Plan (including traffic routes) 

11. Archaeology WSI 

12. Implementation of Archaeological Work Programme 

13. Contaminated Land – risk assessment 

14. Contamination Land – remediation 

15. Parameters Plan – Biodiversity (BPP) 

16. Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
Page 8



 5 

17. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP) 

18. Levels 

19. Surface Water drainage scheme (each phase) 

20. Surface water drainage works (details) 

21. Foul Water drainage 

22. Surface Water drainage completion 

23. Energy Statement 

24. Energy Statement Verification 

25. BREEAM Excellent – Community Building 

26. Hadden Hill Access 

27. New pedestrian access Abingdon Road and Hadden Hill 

28. Estate accesses, driveways and turning areas 

29. Landscape Environment Management Plan (LEMP) 

30. Tree pits design 

31. Landscaping (including hard surfacing and boundary treatment) 

32. Landscape Management Plan 

33. Open Spaces and Play Areas 

34. Noise 

35. Lighting 

36. Green Travel Plans 

37. Electric Vehicle Charging Points 

38. Air Quality – Restriction on gas boilers 

39. Provision of fast fibre broadband 

 

99 P21/S1389/O - Kingsley House, Crowsley Road, Lower Shiplake  
 
Councillor Jane Murphy left the meeting before the start of the item. 

 
The committee considered application P21/S1389/O for an outline application for 
refurbishment, extension and alteration of Kingsley House from 4 flats to up to 8 flats 
incorporating access matters with all other matters reserved (block, site and site access 
plans revised on arboricultural grounds received 21st May 2021 and corrected by plans 
received 7th June 2021 and footprint of Firs Lodge corrected and details of parking, bin 
storage and extension proposals removed as shown on amended plans received 24th 
June 2021). 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting. 
 
The planning officer informed the committee that the highway authority only saw a modest 
increase in vehicle numbers. In addition, the planning officer added that they considered 
the access alterations to be acceptable. The planning officer also confirmed that there 
would not be any significant additional noise nuisance, and this would comply with policy 
DES6. With regards to the historical nature of the building, the committee were informed 
that the council’s conservation officer had confirmed that due to conversion of the building 
into flats during the 1970’s, the building was classed as having lost integrity and was 
therefore not a listed building. However, the building could be considered a designated 
heritage asset in order to retain its existing characteristics. The planning officer concluded 

Page 9



 6 

by confirming that for the application before them, it complied with the relevant criteria and 
was therefore recommended for approval. 
 
Councillor Chris Penrose, representative of Shiplake Parish Council, spoke against the 
application. 
 
Nick Meredith, local resident, spoke against the application. 
 
John Stewart and Paul Southouse, the applicant, and the agent respectively, spoke in 
support of the application. 
 
The committee asked the speaker why no detailed planning application had been 
presented at the meeting. The speakers responded that the application was to agree the 
principles of access and a further application, if the existing application was granted, would 
then follow. A follow-up question was then raised and asked how the applicant could seek 
the committee to consider up to eight residential units as flats without the information 
presented. The speakers replied stating that a full topographical and site survey had been 
carried out and they considered eight dwellings feasible if the existing building was re-
worked, however they had not pursued this further until the principles of access were 
agreed. 
 
The committee also asked the speaker a question on the driveway and its practicality for 
vehicle use. The response to this from the speaker was that there would be a widening to 
ensure two cars could pass each-other, and two sections would be constructed to enable 
passing places where the road was not wide enough for opposing traffic to move past one 
another at the same time. 
 
Councillor David Bartholomew, the local ward member, spoke against the application. 
 
The committee asked whether the road was strong enough for the proposed application, or 
whether it would suffer a fast rate of erosion. The response to the committee was that the 
driveway was in the ownership of the applicant, and it would therefore be in the interests of 
the owners to maintain it. Additionally, the planning officer also added that separate 
households would use it, and due to it being a private road, any maintenance would be 
between the relevant parties. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to refuse planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to refuse outline planning permission for application P21/S1389/O due to the 
harm to the amenity of neighbours through the increase in traffic movements along the 
access. 
 

100 P21/S3371/FUL - Tree Tops House, Gillotts Lane, Henley-on-
Thames  
 
Councillor Alan Thompson left the meeting before the start of the item. 

 
The committee considered application P21/S33371 for the demolition of house. 
Construction of five apartments with detached car ports and bin/cycle store. 
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the meeting. 

Page 10



 7 

 
The planning officer introduced the application, and explained that it had been referred to 
the committee due to objections from Henley Town Council for reasons identified within 
section 2.1 of the report. The planning officer also confirmed that the application had been 
deferred at the previous committee meeting to enable a site visit to take place. The 
application’s background was then provided, with the context of the site’s history detailed. 
The planning committee were told that the existing dwelling had been damaged by fire in 
2019, and an outline application for two new dwellings had been granted in 2020. The 
planning officer added that more recently, planning permission had been granted for a new 
single detached dwelling. 
 
With respect to the application before the committee, the planning officer confirmed that 
their view was that the principle of the current application was acceptable and would 
adhere to existing policy. The site’s location on a brownfield site would provide a net gain 
of four residential units, and met the Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan’s aim of 
the intensification of brownfield site development. The committee were told that the site 
was deemed to have a neutral impact from a wider viewing, and no physical harm had 
been identified from the proposed application. Additionally, the design was considered 
similar to the existing dwelling and similar properties within Henley. In relation to the 
materials used for the application, officers were content that acceptable external materials 
could be secured by a planning condition. 
 
With reference to trees on-site, confirmation was given to the committee that most trees 
were protected by a tree protection order, and that no objections had been received from 
the council’s forestry officer in relation to this. A planning condition however was proposed 
to require tree protection measures, and for new trees to be planted as a replacement for 
any existing trees removed. 
 
The committee were then told that the proposed development would be accessed by 
existing vehicular access, but that the width of the road would be increased with additional 
required visibility splays. Additionally, there would be ten parking spaces, two visitor 
spaces, and bicycle storage facilities. This was confirmed to meet local highway authority 
standards, and no objections had been received from this authority regarding the 
application. Conditions were also recommended to ensure the provision and retention of 
any on-site parking. 
 
The planning officer concluded with a recommendation for a condition that was not listed in 
the report, which would require any external lighting scheme to be submitted to the local 
planning authority for approval before instillation. Subject to the conditions laid out in the 
report, and newly proposed, the application was recommended for approval. 
 
Councillor Ken Arlett, representative of Henley Town Council, spoke against the 
application. 
 
Paul Dickinson, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The committee asked the speaker for confirmation on tree removal on the site and whether 
they would retain any. The speaker replied that only those trees impacted by the fire 
damaged building would be removed. Additionally, the speaker confirmed that whilst at the 
site visit, the conifer tree had been marked for removal, that tree alongside a number of 
others were now being retained. 
 

Page 11



 8 

The committee asked the planning officer whether the land was in the neighbourhood plan 
for development, which the planning officer confirmed it was not. Additionally, in response 
to a question on light spillage, the planning officer confirmed that there was a planning 
condition on the application, which would require any external lighting scheme to be 
approved by the council. 
 
A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote. 
 
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P21/S3371/FUL subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Development to commence within three years 

2. Development to be in accordance with the plans hereby approved 

3. Development to be built with materials as submitted 

4. All external glazing to be coated to prevent illumination and light spill 

5. An organised archaeological watching brief should be maintained on site during 

construction 

6. Findings of watching brief to be submitted for approval 

7. Development shall be implemented in accordance with all of the ecological mitigation 

measures stated in supporting Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

8. A biodiversity enhancement plan (BEP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the local planning authority 

9. Details of surface water drainage works to be submitted for approval 

10. An Arboricultural Method Statement and accompanying Tree Protection Plan shall be 

submitted for approval 

11. Details of landscaping of the site to be submitted for approval 

12. Existing vehicular access to be improved in accordance with highway standards prior to 

occupation 

13. Vision splay dimensions measuring 2.4 metres by 43 metres to be put in place prior to 

occupation 

14. Parking and Manoeuvring Areas provided as approved and thereafter retained 

15. Details of cycle parking to be submitted for approval 

16. No surface water from the development shall be discharged onto the adjoining highway 

17. Any gates provided shall be set back a minimum of 5.0 metres from the edge of the 

carriageway and shall open inwards into the site 

18. Details of new gate to be submitted for approval 

19. Energy Statement Verification – verification report to demonstrate energy efficiency 

measures have been implemented 

20. Each dwelling to be provided with an Electric Vehicle Charging Point 

21. External lighting scheme’s to be submitted to the local planning authority for approval 

before implementation. 

 

101 P21/S3035/FUL - 21 St. Martins Street, Wallingford  
 
Application P21/S3035/FUL was deferred to the next meeting of the planning committee 
due to the meeting time expiring before this application could be considered. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 9 

 
The meeting closed at Time Not Specified 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S5302/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 24.12.2021 
 PARISH WOODCOTE 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Jo Robb & Lorraine Hillier 
 APPLICANT Mr M Allaway 
 SITE 3 Beckley Close, Woodcote, RG8 0SZ 
 PROPOSAL Proposed two storey dwelling and first floor 

extension to existing dwelling with associated 
parking and amenity areas (As amended by plans 
received 22 February 2022 to re-plan the garden 
area and to include a kitchen window) 

 OFFICER Marc Pullen 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee as Woodcote Parish Council object 

to the proposed development.   
 

1.2 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a new two-storey 
dwelling and a first-floor extension to no. 3 Beckley Close.  The proposed 
development would introduce a new one-bedroom dwelling on the site and the 
extension to no. 3 Beckley Close would introduce a third bedroom to the dwelling.   
The new dwelling would occupy an area of open land which is currently used to park 
vehicles for no. 3 Beckley Close and would be attached to no. 3 Beckley Close.  The 
extension to no. 3 Beckley Close would be to the rear of the dwelling.   
 

1.3 The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A) lies 
within an existing area of residential development.  The site lies within the built-up 
limits of the village and is accessed off Beckley Close.  The majority of the site is 
currently used as garden space and parking for no. 3 Beckley Close.  The whole of 
Woodcote lies within the Chilterns AONB. 
 

1.4 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached as Appendix 
B.  Other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the 
council’s website, www.southoxon.gov.uk.  

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Woodcote Parish Council - Object 

 WNP, T8 – Failure to provide 1 off street parking space for each bedroom, of 
what is clearly a 2 bedroom property. 

 WNP, H10 – It is unneighbourly development which is overdevelopment of the 
plot and would have a detrimental impact on the adjoining properties in Beckley 
Close and on the properties behind in Birchen Close. 

 WNP, D1 – The design proposed is out of character (no cladding on properties 
in this area of the village) and there is no regard for renewable energy 
technologies. 

 SOLP, DES6 – application will result in dominance over neighbours. 

 SOLP, DES10 - Application does not give details on how new dwelling will 
achieve at least 40% reduction in carbon emissions. 

 The proposal fails to meet the recommendations in the South Oxfordshire 
Design Guide:  

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S5302/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

 The minimum distances between habitable rooms 

 Awkward shape gardens (such as one proposed for 3 Beckley Close) should 
be avoided in order to be usable 

 External access to rear gardens has been provided, where needed, that 
avoids long, narrow alleyways 

 Side extensions (although this is a new build) are required to retain important 
gaps withing the street scene to avoid creating a terracing effect. Plus be 
subordinate to the principal dwelling. 

 
Forestry Officer (South and Vale) – No objections 

 The proposed dwelling is located outside of the tree’s root protection area 
(RPA), therefore subject to suitable tree protection measures being put in place 
prior to any works starting on site it could be retained unharmed.  

 To improve the front of the existing and proposed development, returning a 
section of the existing hard surfacing in front of the new house would help to 
soften the appearance of the dwelling.  A small section of lawn and some 
shrubs or low-level hedging, and possibly a small tree, such as a Amelanchier 
would make a marked improvement to the street scene. 

 If permission is going to be granted, please attach the general tree protection 
condition and a landscaping condition. 

 
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – No objections 

 The proposed parking area is considered acceptable for the development. 

 The proposal is unlikely to have a significant adverse impact on the highway 
network. 

 Conditions recommended to ensure parking and manoeuvring areas are 
provided on site as per plan and retained as such.  

 
Neighbours - Object (4) 

 Proposal would overlook neighbours and block views  

 Drainage and flooding would be a problem – other garages flood when there is 
very heavy rainfall  

 Noise and disturbance from the dwelling would be another problem for 
neighbours 

 Development would devalue property prices   

 Parking is already inadequate in the close 
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P21/S2932/FUL - Withdrawn (27/09/2021) 

Erection link detached two bed dwelling together with associated parking and amenity 
areas (As amended by plans 2021-08-31 to re-arrange the internal layout and move 
dwelling away from boundary).  

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The site is within a ‘sensitive area’ for the purposes of the EIA regulations 2017 but 

the scale and nature of the proposed development does not require an Environmental 
Statement.   

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES5  -  Outdoor Amenity Space 

Page 16

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S2932/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES10  -  Carbon Reduction 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV2  -  Biodiversity - Designated sites, Priority Habitats and Species 
ENV3  -  Biodiversity 
H1  -  Delivering New Homes 
H16  -  Backland and Infill Development and Redevelopment 
INF4  -  Water Resources 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
STRAT5  -  Residential Densities 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Woodcote Neighbourhood Plan Policies:  
 T8  -  Residential Car Parking Spaces 

H10  -  Infill Housing in the AONB 
D1  -  Good Design  
 

5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 

 
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
  Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. 

 Human Rights Act 1998 - The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have 
been taken into account in the processing of the application and the preparation 
of this report. 

 Equality Act 2010 - In determining this planning application the Council has 
regard to its equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of 
the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 Principle of development  

 Design and character 

 Impact on neighbour amenity 

 Access and parking 

 Other material planning considerations 

 Other matters 
 

 Principle of development  
 

6.2 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  In the case of 
this application, the most relevant parts of the Development Plan are the South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP, 2035) and the Woodcote Neighbourhood Plan (WNP, 
adopted in 2014). 
 

6.3 The South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) supports new housing within Woodcote.  The 
SOLP allocates new housing in Woodcote alongside the WNP.  Policy H10 of the WNP 
also allows for windfall housing to be delivered.  Policy H10 of the WNP supports 
applications for small residential developments on infill and redevelopment sites within 

Page 17



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

Woodcote, provided that the proposal adheres to the WNP and SOLP and where such 
development:  

a) fills a small, restricted gap in the continuity of existing frontage buildings or on 
other sites within the built-up area of the village where the site is closely surrounded 
by buildings;  
b) will not involve the outward extension of the built-up area of the village;  
c) is not considered to be backland or unneighbourly development that requires 
unsuitable access, reduces the privacy of adjoining properties or is inconsistent with 
the character of the locality; and  
d) provides for at least one small home with two or fewer bedrooms for every one 
large dwelling with four or more bedrooms.   

 
6.4 It is officer’s view that the proposed development would be on a site which is closely 

surrounded by other buildings and the development would not result in the outward 
extension of the built-up area of the village.  The proposed development would not 
constitute backland development and is a single dwelling which does not need to 
provide a mix of tenure.  It is officer’s view therefore that the proposed development 
would adhere to the policy requirements of Policy H10 of the WNP and that the 
principle of the development is considered acceptable.   
 

 Design and character  
 

6.5 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) seeks to ensure that all development 
is sympathetic to local character, including the surrounding built environment and 
landscape setting.  Planning decisions should ensure that developments function well 
and add to the overall quality of the area, are visually attractive as a result of good 
architecture, layout and include the appropriate and effective use of landscaping.  The 
housing and development policies within the council’s development plan seek to ensure 
that all new developments are of a design and size that is in keeping with the 
surroundings and does not harm the character of the area.   
 

6.6 The Council’s Development Plan advises that all new development must be designed to 
reflect the positive features that make up the character of the local area and should 
both physically and visually enhance and complement the surroundings, and that all 
new development respects the local context working with and complementing the scale, 
height, density, grain, massing, type and details of the surrounding area.   
 

6.7 Policy D1 of the WNP advises that all forms of new development must plan positively 
for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design, at the same time 
demonstrating that they have sought to conserve local distinctiveness and the aesthetic 
quality of traditional rural settlements and buildings found in the Chilterns AONB.   
 

6.8 The proposed development constitutes two elements, a new two-storey dwelling and a 
two-storey rear extension to no. 3 Beckley Close.   
 

6.9 The new two-storey dwelling would be attached to no. 3 Beckley Close.  The height of 
the proposed dwelling would be set lower than the overall height of no. 3 Beckley Close 
and its width is broadly similar.  The massing of the proposed dwelling would be broadly 
similar to other properties experienced in the locality, with a relatively shallow roof form 
and linear plan form.  The use of a front gable might not be experienced within Beckley 
Close, but is seen in some properties in nearby Grimmer Way and is not considered out 
of keeping. .   
 

6.10 The proposed new dwelling would have adequate garden space to the rear (104sqm) 
which would be delineated by a close board fence.  The garden space which would be 

Page 18



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

retained by no. 3 Beckley Close would also be acceptable (104sqm).  The general plan 
form would not be out of character with the area and adequate space would be 
provided to avoid any cramped form development.    
 

6.11 The use of facing brickwork and similar roof tiles would be in keeping with the nearby 
properties.  Cladding has been omitted from the proposal following a request from 
officers.  Officers are satisfied that materials similar to those currently on no. 3 would be 
acceptable on the new dwelling and the rear extension.   
 

6.12 The proposed two-storey extension to no. 3 Beckley Close would be modest in 
comparison to the main dwelling.  The extension would be set down in height from the 
ridge of the dwelling and the width of the extension is smaller than that of the dwelling.  
The use of matching brickwork and roofing tiles is appropriate.  The first-floor addition 
above the existing utility room also appears as a modest addition to the dwelling, set 
down from the ridge of the dwelling and providing a small extension to the first floor.   
 

6.13 It is officers view that the proposed development, constituting an extension to no. 3 
Beckley Close and the addition of a new two-storey dwelling, would not result in any 
adverse harm to the character and appearance of the wider area.  The development 
would not be regarded as an overdevelopment of the site and its external appearance 
would not be out of keeping.  In officer’s view, the proposed new dwelling would 
complement the scale, height, density, grain and massing of the close and the 
immediate neighbour at no.3 Beckley Close.  The extensions would be subservient and 
sympathetic additions to the dwelling.  
 

 Impact on neighbours  
 

6.14 Policy DES6 (SOLP) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not result in 
significant adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring uses.  Factors to consider 
include loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, dominance or visual intrusion, noise or 
vibration, smell, dust, heat, odour, gases or other emissions, pollution, contamination 
and external lighting.   
 

6.15 Concerns have been raised by local residents that the proposed development would 
result in adverse harm to them.  The principal reasons for concern relate to 
overlooking/loss of privacy from the proposed development and a loss of view.  In 
considering the impact upon neighbours, officers have considered the guidance set out 
within the South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG).   
 

6.16 Privacy:  
The SODG advises on the minimum back-to-back distance between properties where 
habitable rooms face each other as 25 metres.  The minimum back-to-boundary 
distance between properties where habitable rooms face each other is 10 metres.  The 
proposed development achieves approximately 21 metres between it and neighbouring 
no. 4 Birchen Close.  However, the only first floor window to the rear of the new 
dwelling serves a stairwell – this is not considered as a habitable room and as such 
there would be no conflict with the advice of the SODG.  A condition can be imposed 
which would prevent any further first-floor rear facing windows from being installed so 
that the council can maintain control over any future alterations that might be harmful to 
the amenity of neighbours.   
 

6.17 The back-to-back relationship between the proposed extension to no. 3 Beckley Close 
is approximately 23-24 metres.  This falls just shy of the advised 25 metres but the 
back-to-boundary distance is approximately 10 metres which does adhere to the 
guidance within the SODG.  Officers are satisfied that this very small shortfall in 

Page 19



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

distance would not be harmful.  Furthermore, it is important to acknowledge that there 
are two existing first floor windows that serve bedrooms at no. 3 Beckley Close that 
already provide views toward the gardens and windows of neighbours.  It is officer’s 
view therefore that the new extension would not result in any sudden or increased 
impact upon the privacy of neighbours, beyond the existing situation.   
 

6.18 Loss of view:  
It is noted that the loss of a private view is not a material planning consideration in the 
determination of planning applications.  Nor is property value a material planning 
consideration.   
 

6.19 Overbearing/Oppressiveness:  
It is officer’s view that in addition to not resulting in any adverse harm to the privacy of 
neighbours, the proposed development would provide adequate space between 
neighbours and the development and would avoid any overbearing or oppressive 
impacts on neighbours or any shared boundaries.  The proposed extensions to no. 3 
would have an acceptable presence and impact upon neighbouring no. 1 Beckley 
Close.    
 

 Access and parking  
 

6.20 The NPPF advises that development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual 
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.  Policy TRANS5 (SOLP) 
advises that development should provide safe and convenient access for all users to 
the highway network, be served by an adequate road network which can accommodate 
traffic, provide for loading, unloading, circulation, turning space, provide parking in 
accordance with Oxfordshire County Council parking standards.   
 

6.21 Oxfordshire County Council, as the local highway authority, do not object to the 
proposed development.  In their view, the proposed development provides adequate 
levels of parking and manoeuvring.  The proposed development is not considered to 
result in any significant pressures upon the highway network or result in any increased 
harm to highway safety.  As such, the development is considered to be acceptable on 
highway safety and parking terms.   
 

6.22 It is noted that Woodcote Parish Council object to the application on the grounds that 
the new house would not provide enough parking – as the sitting room upstairs could 
be used as a second bedroom.  Officers have reconsulted with Oxfordshire County 
Council on the basis that the development could be used as a two-bedroom dwelling, 
and they continue to support the proposed development.  They state that any displaced 
vehicles would not result in any significant risk to highway safety and whilst the site 
would egress onto Grimmer Way, it is considered that vehicle speeds and traffic 
volumes are relatively low so would not present any threat to the safety of the highway 
network.   
 

6.23 Accordingly, officers do not consider that the proposed development would warrant a 
refusal on grounds of parking and highway safety.  Accordingly, the development would 
adhere to the NPPF and Policy TRANS5 (SOLP).   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

 Other material considerations 
 

6.24 Trees/Landscaping:  
The mature Oak tree growing in the rear garden of the neighbouring property behind (4 
Birchen Close) is of moderate arboricultural quality and does make a valuable 
contribution to the landscape, being visible from several vantage points.   
 

6.25 The proposed dwelling is located outside of the Oak tree’s root protection area (RPA), 
therefore subject to suitable tree protection measures being put in place prior to any 
works starting on site, this tree could be retained.  The submitted Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment includes a draft tree protection plan which illustrates the type of protection 
required.  A condition can be attached which will require the submission and agreement 
of tree protection measures.   
 

6.26 The proposed amount of garden space shown for the new dwelling is very small, 
however due to the size of the tree, it would have limited negative impact on the plot 
only causing some shade in the morning.  To improve the front of the existing and 
proposed development, returning a section of the existing hard surfacing in front of the 
new house would help to soften the appearance of the dwelling.  A small section of 
lawn and some shrubs or low-level hedging, and possibly a small tree would make a 
marked improvement to the street scene.  A condition can be attached which will 
require landscape details to be submitted for approval.   
 

6.27 In light of this assessment, it is officer’s view that the proposed development would 
comply with the policy requirements of Policy ENV1 (SOLP).   
 

6.28 Drainage:  
The proposed development lies in an area of low flood risk (flood risk 1) and is not 
identified as an area susceptible to surface water flooding.   
 

6.29 Carbon Reduction:  
In consultation with the council’s contracted energy assessor, the proposed energy 
statement and calculations comply with the requirements of Policy DES10. 
   

 Other matters  
 

6.30 Pre-commencement conditions:  
In accordance with The Town and Country Planning (Pre-commencement Conditions) 
Regulations 2018, Section 100ZA (6) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990(a) 
the Council is required to confirm agreement to all pre-commencement conditions.  
These will all have been agreed by the applicant/agent in writing in accordance with the 
requirements of this legislation.    
 

6.31 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):  
The council’s CIL charging schedule applies to all relevant proposals.  CIL is a planning 
charge that local authorities can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support 
the development of their area and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint 
created as a result of the development or net gain of residential use on site.  This 
development would be liable to pay CIL.    

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 Planning permission should be granted.  The proposed development would be 

acceptable in principle and subject to conditions, would not be harmful to the character 
and appearance of the area or the amenity of neighbours and would ensure the 
protection and enhancement of landscape value within the site.  The development 

Page 21



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

  

would ensure sufficient energy reduction measures are implemented and that sufficient 
parking and vehicular access is provided.   

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 Planning permission should be granted subject to the following conditions:  

 
 1 : Development hereby approved to commence within three years of date of  

     permission 
2 : Development hereby approved in accordance with approved plans 
3 : Development to be implemented in accordance with materials shown on plan 
     and outlined within application form  
4 : The approved parking & manoeuvring areas should be retained for parking of  
      car 
5 : Landscaping Scheme (trees and shrubs only) to be submitted for approval  
6 : Tree Protection (General) details to be submitted for approval  
7 : No windows, doors or other openings along rear of property unless consent  
     given   
8 : Electric Vehicle Charging Points to be installed for new dwelling (details  
     required) 
9 : All carbon reduction energy efficiency measures to be implemented in  
     accordance with Energy Statement and a verification report submitted for 
     approval  

 

 

Author:  Marc Pullen 

Tel:        01235 422600 

Email:    Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Page 22



Appendix A

Page 23

Agenda Item 8P21/S5302/FUL



1

2

14

7

2

4

2

14

7

10

21

11

1

2

13

3

1

17

1

5

12

14

2

3

1

15

2

54

HAGBOURNE

WAY

CL
OSE

BI
RC

HE
N

CLOSE

GRIMMER

BALDONS CL

CL

BECKLEY

 m20100

464800

46
48

00

181700

181600

181700

181600

1

2

4

2

14

13

3

12

15

WAY

GRIMMER

CL

BECKLEY

Location

Site Plan

N

NUMBER

PROJECT

Proposed Dwelling & Alterations Existing

3 Beckley Close, Woodcote


SCALE
1:1250; 1:500

DATE
Sept 2020


original size A3 ©ꑑ

CLIENT

Mr M. Allaway


DRAWING

Location; Site Plan


2062 - 10B

Building Design
Project ManagementAdrian Aldred

5 Wantage Road
WALLINGFORD
OX10 0LR


telephone 01491 839732

adrian.aldred@btinternet.com
Site Plan 1:500 

0 105 20 2.5 metres

0 10 25 metres

Location 1:1250

Appendix B

P
age 24



 0 2.01.0 4.0 0.5 metres
Scale 1:100 NUMBER

2062 - 14 

PROJECT

Proposed Dwelling

Land at 3 Beckley Close, Woodcote


SCALE
1:100

DATE
Dec 2021


original size A3 ©ꑑ

CLIENT

Mr M. Allaway


DRAWING

Elevations as Existing
Building Design
Project ManagementAdrian Aldred

5 Wantage Road
WALLINGFORD
OX10 0LR


telephone 01491 839732

adrian.aldred@btinternet.com

West

East

South

North

P
age 25



 0 2.01.0 4.0 0.5 metres
Scale 1:100 NUMBER

2062 - 16B

PROJECT

Proposed Dwelling & Alterations Existing

3 Beckley Close, Woodcote


SCALE
1:100

DATE
Dec 2021


original size A3 ©ꑑ

CLIENT

Mr M. Allaway


DRAWING






Building Design
Project ManagementAdrian Aldred

5 Wantage Road
WALLINGFORD
OX10 0LR


telephone 01491 839732

adrian.aldred@btinternet.com

Proposed Elevations

rev A 21:02:22 Window added West elevation
rev B 11:03:22 Cladding removed

West

East

South

North

interlocking tiles 
to match existing

face brickwork 
to match existing

uPvc windows 
& doors

insert window 
existing brickwork

insert window 
existing brickwork

face brickwork 
to match existing

P
age 26



NUMBER

2062 - 13

PROJECT

Proposed Dwelling & Alterations Existing

3 Beckley Close, Woodcote


Building Design
Project ManagementAdrian Aldred

5 Wantage Road
WALLINGFORD
OX10 0LR


telephone 01491 839732

adrian.aldred@btinternet.com

SCALE
1:100

DATE
Dec 2021


original size A3 ©ꑑ

CLIENT

Mr M. Allaway


DRAWING

As Existing


 0 2.01.0 4.0 0.5 metres
Scale 1:100

N

Bedroom 3

Kitchen Utility

Living Room Sitting Room

Hall

wc

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

Bathroom

cup'd

1 BECKLEY CLOSE1 BECKLEY CLOSE

Ground Floor First Floor

P
age 27



NUMBER

2062 - 15A

PROJECT

Proposed Dwelling & Alterations Existing

3 Beckley Close, Woodcote


Building Design
Project ManagementAdrian Aldred

5 Wantage Road
WALLINGFORD
OX10 0LR


telephone 01491 839732

adrian.aldred@btinternet.com

SCALE
1:100

DATE
Dec 2021


original size A3 ©ꑑ

CLIENT

Mr M. Allaway


DRAWING

Proposed Plans


 0 2.01.0 4.0 0.5 metres
Scale 1:100

N
rev A 21:02:22 Window added West elevation

Kitchen Utility

Living Room Sitting Room

Hall

Ground Floor Area  
New Dwelling 30.65sqm

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

Bathroom

1 BECKLEY CLOSE1 BECKLEY CLOSE

Ground Floor First Floor
wc

Kitchen

Living Room

Bedroom  

Sitting

12.00sqm

First Floor Area  
New Dwelling 30.65sqm

Bedroom 3

45º  

install  
window

block 
window

form 
opening

remove window 
form opening

P
age 28



Outline 
4 Birchen Closehedge

Proposed dwelling

Section through site

No 4

existing parking 
3 Beckley Close

Garage block 
Hagbourne Close

Communal 
turning / parking 

area

Carports 
Beckley Close

ex
is

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

3 
Be

ck
le

y 
C

lo
se

existing bin storage 
3 Beckley Close

bin storage 
new dwelling

parking 
new dwelling

1.8m high 
close boarded fence

T1

2.
5 

m
et

re
 h

ig
h 

he
dg

e

No 1

3 Beckley Close 
garden area 

104sqm

Kitchen
Utility

Living Room Sitting Room

Hall

wc

Kitchen

Living Room

No 3

New dwelling 
garden area 

104sqm

NUMBER

2062 - 17A

PROJECT

Proposed Dwelling & Alterations Existing

3 Beckley Close, Woodcote


SCALE
1:200

DATE
Dec 2021


original size A3 ©ꑑ

CLIENT

Mr M. Allaway


DRAWING

Site Plan


N
 0 4.02.0 8.0 1.0 metres Scale 1:200

Building Design
Project ManagementAdrian Aldred

5 Wantage Road
WALLINGFORD
OX10 0LR


telephone 01491 839732

adrian.aldred@btinternet.com

rev A 21:02:22 Garden areas amended

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P21/S3252/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 19.7.2021 
 PARISH HENLEY-ON-THAMES 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Ken Arlett 

Kellie Hinton 
Stefan Gawrysiak 

 APPLICANT Hobbs of Henley 
 SITE Hobbs Red Lion Moorings, Thameside, Henley on 

Thames, RG9 2LJ 
 PROPOSAL Installation of an accessible boat mooring. (as 

amended by plans including a reduction in the size 
of the floating pontoon and the loss of one finger 
jetty to allow for the mooring of boats closer to the 
river bank and not out into the river navigation 
submitted 2 March 2022). 

 OFFICER Caitlin Phillpotts 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 The application is referred to Planning Committee because the Officers’ 

recommendations conflict with the views of Henley Town Council.   
 

1.2 The site forms a small parcel of land lying along the banks of the River Thames 
between Thameside and an existing line of pontoon mornings, located within the built 
up limits of Henley-On-Thames. The site lies inside of Henley’s Main Conservation 
Area and within the setting of the Grade I listed Henley Bridge and a number of 
surrounding listed buildings.  The site lies inside of flood zone 3.  
 

 
 

1.3 The application seeks planning permission for the construction of an accessible ramp 
extending from the adjoining highway and down to an existing area of pontoons to be 
upgraded as part of the proposed scheme. Indicatively the proposed boundary 
treatments are shown in a combination of painted meatal estate rail and timber 
fencing in a design and style to match the existing gates and fences in the immediate 
area. A copy of the plans is attached as Appendix A and other documentation 
associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s website, 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.  

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S3252/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

 
 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Henley-on-Thames Town Council  

- Recommends refusal due to the impact of the proposal on the 
character of the area, adverse impact on the adjacent moorings and 
associated traffic - noting, a disabled ramp in this location is not necessary, 
there is already adequate provision nearby  

-  
2.2 County Archaeological Services  

- Comments with no objections 
 

2.3 Conservation Officer (South and Vale)  
- Raises no objections, commenting the proposals are in keeping with the 

riverside character of the conservation area. There would be a negligible visual 
impact at street level where the railings are proposed to remain as existing, and 
the ramp would not obstruct views between the bridge and other buildings within 
the conservation area 

 
2.4 Countryside Officer (South and Vale)  

- Comments with no objections 
 

2.5 Drainage - (South and Vale) – No comments  
 

2.6 Forestry Officer (South and Vale)  
- Comments with no objections  

 
2.7 Contaminated Land  

- Comments with no objections 
 

2.8 Environment Agency : Flood Risk – Planning  
- Comments with no objections subject to the recommended conditions  

 
2.9 Environment Agency : River Thames Waterways Team 

- Raises no objections commenting, following the submission of new plans… it is 
now clear there are no changes planned for the configuration of the finger 
moorings. Therefore, the Environment Agency withdraw their objections to this 
application as it will not impact on Navigation of the river Thames 
 

2.10 Equalities Officer - No objections, highlighting available guidance on inclusive-mobility 
with a guide to distances an impaired person can walk before needing a rest and 
suitable surfacing materials 
 

 

Page 32



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

2.11 The Henley Society (Planning)  
- Objects for the same reasons as Henley Town Council.  

 
2.12 Neighbours  

- Original Plans (3 representations) Object raising concerns over; the impact of 
the proposed development on the existing use and accessibility of the Red Lion 
Lawn mooring immediately south of the application site; the potential net loss of 
one mooring space along this section of the river; the potential for the new 
pontoon to accommodate larger boats to be moored further out into the 
navigation and the resulting obstruction this may cause to other boat users and 
altered views into and across the river inside of the conservation area; issues of 
safe access onto the proposed ramp from the busy road with narrow footpath; 
increased risk of flooding / water displacement from the larger pontoon 
proposed; river safety due to potential obstructions of boats being moored 
further out into the navigation (particularly during the regatta season); impact on 
noise and traffic disruption resulting from the intensification of use of the site; 
impact on the adjacent tree scape protected by virtue of the conservation area 

- First reconsultation (1 representation) Welcomes the reduction in the obstruction 
of the waterways, other previous objection maintained  

- Second reconsultation (1 representation) Previous objection with regards to 
visual impact, access and parking maintained. Notes the proposed morning 
would encroach on the riparian rights of the council owned land that is adjacent. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 None  

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 Not applicable  

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 

 
 STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 

HEN1  -  The Strategy for Henley-on-Thames 
CF2 - Provision of Community Facilities and Services 
CF4  -  Existing Open Space, Sport and Recreation Facilities 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES3  -  Design and Access Statements 
DES6 - Residential Amenity 
DES8  -  Promoting Sustainable Design 
EMP11  -  Tourism 
ENV1  -  Landscape and Countryside 
ENV2  - Biodiversity - Designated sites, Priority Habitats & Species 
ENV3  - Biodiversity  
ENV4  -  Watercourses 
ENV6  -  Historic Environment 
ENV7  -  Listed Buildings 
ENV8  -  Conservation Areas 
ENV9  -  Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
ENV12 - Pollution - Potential Sources of Pollution 
EP4  -  Flood Risk 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 
 

Page 33



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 
5.2 Joint Henley & Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan 

 
TCE1 - Henley Town Centre 
DQS1 - Local Character 

  
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
  
 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
  
 National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

 
5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
  

Human Rights Act 1998 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 

  
Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 Current policy 

 Design and character 

 Biodiversity & protected species  

 Flood risk  

 Inclusive access  

 Residential amenity 

 Other material planning considerations 
 

6.2 Current Policy 
The acceptability of the development proposed is assessed under national and local 
development plan policies which allow for extensions to commercial premises 
facilitating open sport and recreation activities for the community and the visitor 
economy where they are accessible for all members of the community and promote 
social inclusion, on the banks of the River Thames, inside of Henley’s Main 
Conservation Area, and within the setting of listed buildings and structures as outlined 
above.  
 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires that, in 
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed 
building, its setting and / or the wider historic or archaeological environment, the local 
planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the area or 
building, its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
either possesses. Paragraphs 189 to 208 of the NPPF reflect this requirement, stating 
that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a 
designated area and / or heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation. Non-designated heritage assets of archaeological interest, which are 

Page 34



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

demonstrably of equivalent significance to scheduled monuments, should be 
considered subject to the policies for designated heritage assets. 
 
Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 confirms the 
public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent 
with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity. 
Paragraphs 174 and 179 to 182 of the NPPF reflect this requirement, stating that when 
considering the impact of a proposed development on protected features of a habitats 
site and / or a protected species, the local planning authority shall have special regard 
to conservation of biodiversity.   
 
Paragraphs 174, 178, 206, 207 of the NPPF recognise the contribution trees, woodland 
and landscape features make to the intrinsic character of the countryside, settlements 
and the historic environment and requires that, in considering an application which 
affects a (protected) tree / landscape feature, the local planning authority should assess 
the impact of the proposal on the historic character and amenity of the area and 
whether the proposal is justified, having regard to the reasons and additional 
information put forward in support of it. 
 
Paragraphs 159 to 169 of the NPPF confirm inappropriate development in areas at risk 
of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk 
(whether existing or future). Where development may be appropriate in such areas, the 
development should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk 
elsewhere. Policies ENV12 and E4 of the SOLP 2035 are informed by a strategic flood 
risk assessment and look to manage flood risk from all sources. For applications made 
inside of flood zone 3 the local planning authority will have special regard to the 
cumulative impacts in, or affecting, local areas susceptible to flooding, and take account 
of advice from the Environment Agency and other relevant flood risk management 
authorities.   
 

6.3 Design & character : impact on the conservation area & wider historic 
environment  
The proposal is for the construction of an accessible ramp extending from the adjoining 
highway and down to an existing area of pontoons to be upgraded as part of the 
proposed scheme, with associated boundary treatment and entrance gate to be fitted 
into the existing cast iron railings located along Thameside. Having reviewed the 
scheme proposed the council’s conservation officer has provided the comments pasted 
below.  
 
The application site is within Henley Conservation Area and within the setting of the 
grade I listed Henley Bridge and grade II listed buildings adjacent to the river including 
the Red Lion Hotel. This part of the conservation area centres around the river and is 
significant as a place of leisure, trade, transport and for its contribution to the 
development of Henley. The buildings in this area, many of which are listed contribute 
to historic views, drawn and photographed of the river, and the understanding of the 
use and development of the area as well as their individual built fabric interest and 
associations. 
 
This application is for alterations to a river mooring to make it inclusively accessible. 
This would create a more visually intrusive piece of infrastructure in order to provide the 
necessary railings and gradient. It has however been designed to minimise the impact 
by using locally distinctive materials, avoiding significant trees and so that it rises and 
falls with the water. As such I am satisfied that the visual impact would be negligible, in 
keeping with the character and appearance of this part of the conservation area and 
unharmful to the setting of the surrounding listed buildings. 

Page 35

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/16/section/40


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 
6.4 On review of the revised scheme submitted to accommodate concerns over river safety 

navigation the council’s conservation officer notes, the amended proposals on the 
historic environment would remain as previous. My comments are unchanged. The 
proposals are in keeping with the riverside character of the conservation area. There 
would be a negligible visual impact at street level where the railings are proposed to 
remain as existing, and the ramp would not obstruct views between the bridge and 
other buildings within the conservation area. 
 

6.5 Design & character : impact on the landscape setting 
As noted by the council’s forestry officer, the proposed access ramp is within the 
theoretical root protection area of the mature London plane tree growing to the south. 
This tree is protected by the conservation area. However, due to the existing site 
conditions and the relatively light weight structure of the ramp, it is not considered that 
the construction of the development as proposed would cause any significant harm to 
the tree.  
 

6.6 Whilst the proposed scheme sees the introduction of a more visually intrusive piece of 
infrastructure, in the context of the existing moorings along this section of river in my 
view, it would not significantly alter existing views into and across the rivers edge when 
viewed from the wider public vantage points inside of the conservation area.  
 

   
 
I note the objections raised during the consultation process on the original plans 
submitted, with regards to the potential for the larger floating pontoon proposed to 
accommodate river access for larger boats than the existing finger jetties and the 
resulting impact on the character of the river side larger boats might have, in so far as 
their capacity to interrupt existing views inside of the conservation area. The revised 
scheme submitted to accommodate concerns over river safety navigation sees the 
floating pontoon lost in favour or a finger jetty arrangement not dissimilar to that 
existing. The arrangement now proposed may accommodate slightly larger boats than 
existing however, in my opinion when read in relation to the existing use and pattern of 
development in the area, I do not consider this would result in harm to the existing 
historic character of the site and riverside location.  
 

6.7 In my opinion the proposals form an appropriate visual relationship with the existing site 
and would not harm the character or appearance of the plot, setting of the neighbouring 
listed buildings and Henley Bridge or the wider surrounding conservation area along the 
banks of the River Thames. The proposal therefore complies with policies STRAT1, 
DES1, DES2, DES3, ENV1, ENV4, ENV6, ENV7 and ENV8 of the South Oxfordshire 
Local Plan (SOLP), policy DQS1 of the Joint Henley & Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan 
(JH&HNP) and technical guidance set out in the South Oxfordshire Design Guide 
(SODG). 

Page 36



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 
6.8 Biodiversity & protected species  

Having reviewed the proposed scheme, plans and supporting documents submitted as 
part of this application the councils ecologist notes, due to the location of the site, off of 
a main river and close to much anthropogenic disturbance, it is considered very unlikely 
that this small section of the riverbank supports any protected species. The proposed 
development would retain the bank, being constructed above it, as shown on section 
plans. I am mindful of the requirements of Policy ENV4 of the SOLP. The site is 
surrounded by boat moorings and other forms of development. I do not consider it 
expedient to apply the 10 metre buffer in this instance and raises no objections to this 
application on the basis of ecology or biodiversity. 
 

6.9 On review of the revised scheme the Environment Agency has provided a view on the 
impact of the proposed scheme on fisheries, biodiversity and nature conservation 
commenting, there is no assessment of the ecological impacts this proposal may have 
and no photos have been provided to enable us to make an assessment ourselves. We 
believe the development will not see the loss of natural bank as there is already an 
existing mooring at this site.  
 
The floating pontoon will, however, result in the permanent shading of the river bed 
which will prevent aquatic plants from growing, and as such will result in a net loss of 
biodiversity at the site. Plants provide habitat for fish and insects, and in particular cover 
for juvenile fish. We request ecological enhancements to mitigate for the permanent 
shading of the watercourse.  
 

6.10 However, the scheme now proposed makes use of a small finger jetty and no floating 
pontoon is now proposed. Having reviewed the amended scheme the council’s 
ecologist is satisfied the development proposed would not impact existing species and 
their habitats along the existing section of riverbank and where the proposed 
development does not include the provision of a floating ponton, I consider it would be 
both unreasonable and unnecessary to attach the suggested ecological enhancement 
condition to any permission granted under this application for the small finger jetty.  
 

Page 37



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 
 

6.11 Flood risk  
Having reviewed the initial submission, the planning advisor at the Environment agency 
requested the submission of a FRA and provided the observations below.  
 
The application site is located within Flood Zone 3 according to our Flood Map for 
Planning. This is defined as areas having a high probability of flooding in accordance 
with Table 1 ‘Flood Risk’ of the Planning Practice Guidance. Our detailed modelling 
(Thames (Henley to Hurley 2002)) shows the site to be located within Flood Zone 3b. 
The proposed mooring and access ramps to the new pontoon will therefore be subject 
to flooding during a 5% Annual Exceedance Probability (AEP) (1 in 20 year) event. 
 
As the application is for an installation of an accessible boat mooring and is associated 
with outdoor sports and water-based recreation. We therefore consider this 
development to be ‘water compatible’ development in terms of flood risk in accordance 
with Table 2: Flood risk vulnerability classification of the Planning Practice Guidance. 
  
There are no specific dimensions quoted but when scaled from the submitted drawings 
- it appears to be approximately 6m by 6.5m. The proposed pontoon would be located 
on the western bank of the River Thames, classified as statutory Main River, just 
downstream of the Henley Bridge.  
 
 

Page 38



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

6.12 Having reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment submitted on 25 January 2022 the the EA 
is satisfied that subject to the suggested compliance condition the proposed 
development is compatible with its riverside location and would not result in any 
increased risk of flooding in the area taking into account climate change and projected 
rising water levels. The proposed scheme accords with policy E4 of the SOLP and 
paragraphs 159 to 169 of the NPPF.   
 

6.13 Inclusive access  
Having reviewed the application, the council’s equalities officer raises no objections to 
the proposed scheme providing information on guidelines for inclusive-mobility in 
particular for distances an impaired person can walk before needing a rest and suitable 
surfacing materials. The governments inclusive-mobility document sets out in section 
2.4 suggested distances an impaired person can walk before needing a rest as shown 
in the table pasted below.  
 

 
The total length of the proposed access ramp from the adjoining highway and down to 
the point of embarkment measures no more than 30 metres. Taking into account the 
additional distance required to walk the footpath along the adjoining highway from near 
by parking bays the walking distance is unlikely to exceed 100 metres making the 
mooring fully accessible to a large percentage of the population, particularly when 
compared with the existing arrangement. At the agreement of the agent a condition has 
been attached to this permission requiring the submission of a full schedule of materials 
including suitable non-slip finishes for the access foot path.  
 

6.14 Residential amenity 
Given the scale, design and position of the proposed finger jetty, access ramp, gates 
and fences, I do not consider that the proposed development would result in any harm 
to the amenity of the neighboring properties in terms of light, outlook or privacy. The 
existing site is in use as a mooring for a local boating company and I do not consider 
the addition of the accessible ramp would result in any significant increase in activity 
which might result in any measurable increase in noise and nuisance compared with 
the existing use and arrangements at the site and surrounding area.  
 

6.15 River safety navigation  
I note the concerns raised during the consultation process, with regards to the impact of 
the proposed scheme on river safety particular during the regatta season when river 
traffic is increased. The proposed pontoon sees the boats to be moored at 90 degrees 
to the existing finger jetties, in contrast to the existing layout along this section of the 
river where boats are moored at 90 degrees to the highway. As commented by the EA’s 
River Thames Waterways Team, the originally proposed layout, with floating pontoon, 
saw boats moored further out into the navigation channel, leading to potential 
obstructions of river traffic which raised concerns due to the proximity of the mooring to 
Henley Bridge.  
 

6.16 Amended plans have been provided, which see the loss of the floating pontoon in 
favour of a shortened finger jetty. Whilst the boats are still to be moored parallel to the 

Page 39



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

riverside, from the arial mapping images I have available to me it is evident that the 
existing finger jetties allow access for longer boats which project further into the 
navigation, roughly equal to the layout now proposed.    
 

         
Originally proposed layout                                 Revised scheme now under consideration        Arial mapping image 2015/2018 

 
6.17 On review of the revised scheme the EA’s River Thames Waterways Team comments, 

following the submission of new plans… it is now clear there are no changes planned 
for the configuration of the finger moorings. Therefore, the Environment Agency 
withdraw their objections to this application as it will not impact on Navigation of the 
river Thames. In light of this, I am satisfied that the development proposed and / or its 
future use would not present a risk to river navigation safety.  
 

6.18 Planning permission under this application does not grant either an Environmental 
Permit or Accommodation Licence which are required by and are obtainable from the 
Environment Agency in order to see the operational development proposed 
implemented at the site. Where the Environment Agency are the regulating authority for 
operational uses across the river network, the suitability of the site for the proposed 
development, in so far as its impact on river safety, is covered by the statutory 
framework in which they operate and will be considered under the further applications 
required.  
 

6.19 Other material planning considerations 
I note the concerns raised with regards to the impact of the development on increased 
traffic congestion in the area and highways safety. The existing uses at the site are to 
be retained. I cannot see that the accessible arrangement to the moorings would 
significantly or demonstrably increase traffic in the area. Traffic is strictly controlled 
along the adjoining highway to prevent indiscriminate parking. In my view, the proposed 
development would not significantly increase traffic in the area and would not in itself 
present any increased risk to highways safety in accordance with policy TRANS5 of the 
SOLP.  
 

6.20 Policy DES8 of SOLP states that all new development has to demonstrate how they are 
seeking to reduce greenhouse emissions through location, building orientation, design, 
landscape and planting. This is a modest proposal for the addition of gates and fences 
with no scope for reducing greenhouse emissions. 

  
6.21 Pre-commencement conditions 

The applicant has agreed the materials condition recommended below, requiring the 
submission of details prior to the commencement of development.  
 
 

 

Page 40



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 The proposal complies with the relevant Development Plan policies and, subject to the 

attached conditions, the proposed development would be acceptable in terms of its 
relationship to the character of the banks of the River Thames, its site, setting of the 
adjacent Grade I listed Henley Bridge and neighbouring listed buildings and the wider 
historic character of the conservation area. It is also acceptable in terms of its impact on 
the existing river network and would not result in any increased risk of flooding in the 
area,  

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 Grant Planning Permission subject to the following conditions 

 
 1 : Commencement three years - Full Planning Permission 

2 : Development in accordance with the approved plans  
3 : Sample materials to be agreed 
4 : Flood mitigation measure - implementation as approved 
 
 

 

Author: Caitlin Phillpotts 

Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Tel: 01235 422600 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 41

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9
P

21/S
3252/FU

L



P
age 44



Existing timber moorings

Proposed ramp to site

Existing timber mooring
to be removed

Proposed new floating
mooring to be
discussed separately
with environment
agency

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Revision Date Initial

ScaleDate Drawn by

RevisionProject No Drawing No

Drawing Title

Project

www.adsj.co.ukinfo@adsj.co.uk

68 Norton Road    Woodley    Reading    Berkshire    RG5 4AJ

07968 141918

136

Hobbs Red Lion Moorings, Thameside, 
Henley on Thames RG9 2LJ

005

Proposed Site Plan

14.05.2021 As noted @A3 SJ

B

NORTH

EW

SUNPATH

PLANNING

This drawing has been prepared based on
Topographic survey data information
received February 2021 undertaken by
Ground Surveys Ltd

1 Site Plan
Existing 1:100

A3

5m31

420

A - Site demise (redline amended) 29.09.21 SJ
B - Floating mooring removed to EA
request

26.02.22 SJ

P
age 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
STN1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
RG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
CL32.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
EC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
32.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
32.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
32.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
32.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
32.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
32.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
32.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
32.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
32.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
32.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
32.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
32.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
32.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
32.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
32.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
32.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
32.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
32.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
32.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
32.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
32.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
31.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
32.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
32.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
31.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
30.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
31.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
31.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
31.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
30.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
31.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
31.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
29.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
32.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
31.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
31.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
30.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
31.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
29.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
31.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
31.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
30.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
31.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
29.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
29.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
31.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
31.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
32.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
31.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
31.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
31.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
30.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
31.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
30.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
30.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
31.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
30.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
31.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
31.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
31.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
exposed rootline

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
T3

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
bole

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
bole

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
32.28HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
32.28HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
32.39HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
32.36HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
32.42HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
32.52HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
32.73HT

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
A4130

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
M'HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
statue

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
28.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
28.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
28.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
paved

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
paved

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
wooden moorings

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
RIVER THAMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
flow river in flood at time of survey water level 31.00m 23/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
T H A M E S I D E ( A 4 1 3 0 )

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
grass



P
age 46



Existing timber moorings

Existing metal fence

Existing metal fence to
be altered to form new
gate to match existing
for access to ramps

Proposed ramps with
edge protection

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Revision Date Initial

ScaleDate Drawn by

RevisionProject No Drawing No

Drawing Title

Project

www.adsj.co.ukinfo@adsj.co.uk

68 Norton Road    Woodley    Reading    Berkshire    RG5 4AJ

07968 141918

136

Hobbs Red Lion Moorings, Thameside,
Henley on Thames RG9 2LJ

006

Proposed Elevation

14.05.2021 As noted @A3 SJ

B

NORTH

EW

SUNPATH

PLANNING

1 Riverside Elevation
Proposed D-D SCALE 1:100

A3

This drawing has been prepared based on
Topographic survey data information
received February 2021 undertaken by
Ground Surveys Ltd

5m31

420

A - Notation revised 06.12.21 SJ
B - Floating mooring removed to EA
request

26.02.22 SJ

P
age 47

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
moorings silhouette

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
dashed line denotes water level at time of survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
D



P
age 48



Existing metal fence

Existing footpath

Existing metal fence to
be altered to form new
gate to match existing
for access to ramps

summer level 30.40 (approx)

FR level 31.00 (approx)

New pontoon level + 0.8

Proposed ramps with
edge protection

Proposed new floating
mooring to be
discussed separately
with environment
agency

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Revision Date Initial

ScaleDate Drawn by

RevisionProject No Drawing No

Drawing Title

Project

www.adsj.co.ukinfo@adsj.co.uk

68 Norton Road    Woodley    Reading    Berkshire    RG5 4AJ

07968 141918

136

Hobbs Red Lion Moorings, Thameside,
Henley on Thames RG9 2LJ

007

Proposed Elevation

14.05.2021 As noted @A3 SJ

A

NORTH

EW

SUNPATH

PLANNING
1 Thameside Elevation

Existing C-C SCALE 1:100

A3

This drawing has been prepared based on
Topographic survey data information
received February 2021 undertaken by
Ground Surveys Ltd

5m31

420

2 Section A-A
Existing SCALE 1:100

A - Floating mooring removed to EA
request

26.02.22 SJ

P
age 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
dashed line denotes water level at time of survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
D



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P20/S2504/FUL 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION 
 REGISTERED 18.11.2020 
 PARISH HENLEY-ON-THAMES 
 WARD MEMBERS Ken Arlett, Kellie Hinton & Stefan Gawrysiak 
 APPLICANT Mr Can Sengunes 
 SITE 46 King James Way, Henley-on-Thames, RG9 1XL 
 PROPOSAL Change of use of ground floor of existing building 

from residential to a mixed use of residential and 
childcare purposes and addition of a temporary 
wooden structure to the garden to provide a covered 
area. 

 OFFICER Paul Lucas 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This report sets out the justification for officers’ recommendation to grant planning 

permission having regard to the development plan and any other material planning 
considerations. The application is referred to the planning committee due to a 
difference between officers’ recommendation and the views of Henley Town Council. 
 

1.2 The application site is shown at Appendix A. It comprises a residential plot, 
consisting of an end of terrace two-storey dwelling and its garage on the end of a 
block, in a residential cul-de-sac constructed in the 1980s within the built-up area of 
Henley. There are no special designations on the site. 
 

1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the ground floor of 
the dwelling to a mixed use of residential and childcare and the erection of a single 
storey wooden structure for use as a garden room attached to the rear elevation of the 
dwelling. Offsted-registered childminding, run by the tenanted occupiers of the 
property, has lawfully taken place at the property since 2011 without the need for 
planning permission. However, when the garden room was erected in 2019 the 
intensification of the childcare use brought about by the additional floorspace has 
triggered the need to apply for planning permission retrospectively for a material 
change of use as well as for the structure. The business operates with two full-time 
members of staff and caters for a maximum of six children on any given weekday. 
Occasionally they may take a temporary / emergency cover child as they are listed 
with Oxfordshire Family Services. The hours of operation are from 7:30am to 6pm. 
 

1.4 The current plans can be found at Appendix B. Other documents can be viewed on 
the Council’s website 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Henley-on-Thames Town Council - Recommend refusal on the grounds that this is a 

commercial scheme in a residential location which could be permanent and would lead 
to an increase in traffic and excessive noise.  
 
South -Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – No objection 
 
Environmental Protection Team – No noise complaints received – no objection 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S2504/FUL
https://data.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P20/S2504/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

The Henley Society (Planning) - We question whether this 'temporary' extension for 
commercial use is appropriate in this residential area, especially as it occupies almost 
the whole garden. It would certainly be unneighbourly. 
 
Third Parties – 17 neighbours consulted, no representations received. 
 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 SE19/621 - Without planning permission the erection of an outbuilding (PD restriction) 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The proposed development is not Schedule 1 or 2 development as defined by the 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 so 
an Environmental Impact Assessment is not required. 

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

  
 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 

CF2  -  Provision of Community Facilities and Services 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES5  -  Amenity areas 
DES6  -  Neighbouring amenity 
EMP2  -  Range, Size and Mix of Employment premises 
ENV12   -  Pollution - Potential Sources of Pollution 
H20  -  Extensions to Dwellings 
STRAT1  -  The Overall Strategy 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Joint Henley & Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan – made 14 April 2016 
DQS1 - Local Character 
T1 - Impact of development on the transport network 
 
Review Neighbourhood Plan – limited weight at this stage: 
Henley-on-Thames Town Council has submitted a reviewed neighbourhood plan to 
South Oxfordshire District Council. If adopted, the reviewed plan will replace the Joint 
Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan adopted on 14 April 2016. 
The publicity period on the draft plan concluded on 16 March 2022. The draft plan 
documents and comments received during the publicity period have now been 
submitted for independent examination. Please see Response Report A and Response 
Report B. 
Andrew Ashcroft has been appointed by the district council to carry out the 
examination. The examiner’s role is to make recommendations on the draft plan, and 
ultimately on if the plan should proceed to referendum. 
The district council’s Modifications Statement has been submitted to the examiner. 
The examiner issued a Clarification Note on 30 March 2022. The response from the 
town council will be published in due course. 

  
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) - Section 7 Plots & Buildings 
  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 
 
 

Page 52

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=SE19/621
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/03/JHHNP-Website-Report-Part-A.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/03/JHHNP-Website-Report-Part-B.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/03/JHHNP-Website-Report-Part-B.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/03/2022-03-22-JHHNP-SODC-Modification-Statement.pdf
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2022/03/JHHNP-Clarification-Note.pdf


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 Principle of Development 

 Visual Impact 

 Residential Amenity Impact 

 Access 

 Planning Balance 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Principle of Development 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development 
plan currently comprises the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP 2035) and the 
Joint Henley & Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan (JHHNP 2016). 
 
Policy STRAT1 of the SOLP 2035 sets out the overall strategy for the District. It seeks 
to focus most major new development at the growth point of Didcot and other allocated 
sites with Henley, Thame and Wallingford also being a focus for development and 
regeneration. Policy H20 supports the extension and alteration of residential properties, 
provided criteria are met relating to parking and amenity space. 
 
The use of the premises for childcare is a private business that provides a public 
service and a level of employment. Policy CF2 explains that development proposals for 
the provision of new or extended community facilities and services will be supported, 
particularly where: 
i) they are located within or adjacent to the built-up area of an existing settlement; 
ii) they would clearly meet an identified local need; and 
iii) they are accessible for all members of the community and promote social inclusion. 
 

6.5 Policy EMP2 states that proposals for employment use will provide a range of sizes and 
types of premises, including flexible business space to meet current and future 
requirements. The Council will support proposals for premises suitable for small and 
medium sized businesses. 
 

6.6 These policies provide in principle support for the expansion of the childcare business, 
due to its sustainable location. However, the acceptability of the proposal is subject to 
an assessment against any site-specific impacts, as set out below. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Visual Impact 
The SOLP 2035 Policy DES1 seeks to ensure that all new development is of a high-
quality design subject to a series of criteria. The SOLP 2035 Policy DES2 states that all 
new development must be designed to reflect the positive features that make up the 
character of the local area and should both physically and visually enhance and 
complement the surroundings. These objectives are reinforced by the JHHNP 2016 
Policy DQS1. 

Page 53



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

  
6.8 The garden room is 9.05 metres in depth and 4.5 metres wide, so it therefore takes up 

most of the original rear garden. It is constructed from timber, with a polycarbonate roof 
and perspex windows. Whilst these materials would not match the existing dwelling, 
conservatories and outbuildings in residential areas often have materials that are 
distinct from their host dwellings. In this instance, the contrasting appearance of the 
materials is offset by the fact that it allows the roof of the structure to have a low 
maximum height of 2.44 metres, which reduces its visual impact. It nonetheless 
projects above the boundary wall with the adjacent parking court to the east by about 
0.5 metres. However, the parking court is a private area and there is intervening 
boundary hedging around the eastern and northern perimeter, separating it from the 
public highway. This means that the closest public views of the structure are over a 
distance of 15-20 metres, where it would be behind the hedge and the boundary wall 
and in between the blank two storey side elevation of No.46 and the three-bay garage 
block. There is also a backdrop of mature trees. In this context, officers consider that 
the garden room, in spite of its depth, does not appear unduly prominent and as such 
does not detract significantly from the character and appearance of this residential 
area. In the light of this assessment, the proposal would comply with the above policies. 
 

6.9 Residential Amenity Impact 
Policy H20 Criterion iii) explains that sufficient amenity areas should be provided for the 
extended dwelling. The SOLP 2035 Policy DES5 aims to provide adequate outdoor 
amenity space in line with Section 7 of the SODG 2016. The SOLP 2035 Policy DES6 
relates to residential amenity and requires that development proposals should 
demonstrate that they will not result in significant adverse impacts on the amenity of 
neighbouring uses, when considering both individual and cumulative impacts in relation 
to loss of privacy, daylight and sunlight, dominance or visual intrusion, noise or 
vibration, smell, dust, heat, odour or other emissions, pollution, and external lighting. 
 

6.10 No.46 was constructed as a three-bedroom dwelling and the change of use has not 
altered the first-floor accommodation, so those bedrooms remain. The garden area was 
originally around 54 square metres, which was below the current recommended 
minimum standard of 100 square metres for a dwelling of this size, as set out in Section 
7 of the SODG. There is a small area behind the garden room that provides pedestrian 
access to the rear of No’s 42, 44 & 46 and is used for communal bin storage. Clearly, 
the garden room has meant the total loss of any usable outdoor amenity space, 
resulting in some harm to the residential amenity of the occupiers of No.46. 
 

6.11 The garden room projects significantly beyond the rear elevation of the adjoining single 
storey rear extension at No.44. Although it is set in from the boundary by 0.5 metres 
and has a relatively low roof height at 2.44 metres, the depth of the structure means 
that it does cause some loss of light and outlook to the ground floor rear aspect and 
garden of the adjoining occupiers, thereby detracting from their residential amenity. 
 

6.12 In relation to the dual use of the property, the Council’s Environmental Health Team 
have confirmed there have been no noise nuisance complaints lodged against the 
business and they have raised no objections to the application. The childcare use could 
be restricted to the normal business hours of 7:30am to 6pm Monday to Friday only to 
prevent escalation of the use into evenings, weekends, and public holidays when 
neighbouring residents are more likely to be at home and enjoying their gardens. 
 

6.13 Based on the above assessment, officers conclude that the garden room is resulting in 
some harm to residential amenity and therefore conflicts with the aims and objectives of 
the SOLP 2035 Policies H20, DES5 and DES6. 
 

Page 54



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

 
6.14 Access and Parking 

The SOLP 2035 Policy TRANS5 and the JHHNP 2016 Policy T1 seek to ensure that 
development would not be prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety. Henley Town 
Council has objected to the application on the grounds of traffic generation and lack of 
parking. However, the Highway Liaison Officer has commented that the maximum 
number of children contained within the extended dwelling is low and the number of 
movements associated with the proposal is considered to be relatively low. The 
provision of the garden room is unlikely to be significantly adding to the level of vehicle 
movements. Given the likely low number of vehicular movements associated with the 
dual use this is unlikely to significantly impact upon the highway. They also consider the 
existing two parking spaces within the garage and in front of the garage to be sufficient 
to support both residential and childcare elements, given that the business is run by the 
tenanted occupiers. 
 

6.15 Planning Balance 
The application has been found to result in harm to residential amenity due to the lack 
of garden space for current occupiers of No.46 and the loss of light and outlook to the 
rear aspect of No.44. This causes conflict with the SOLP 2035 Policies H20, DES5 and 
DES6. The occupiers took the decision to sacrifice their outdoor amenity space to 
construct the garden room, so that they could offer an improved facility for the childcare 
business. The occupiers can nonetheless use the garden room for residential purposes 
outside of the hours of operation of the business. Due to the translucent roof, it 
provides a covered space with good natural lighting. The site also lies within about 650 
metres of Makins Recreation Ground, which gives the applicants good access to public 
open space to compensate somewhat for the loss of private garden space. The 
applicants state that the garden room was designed in cooperation with the 
owner/occupier at No.44 and made modifications to reduce its impact. The 
owner/occupier of No.44 has not objected to the application and any future occupiers of 
that property would be aware of the current situation beforehand. Under these 
circumstances, officers attribute moderate weight to the harm to residential amenity. 
 

6.16 The expansion of the floor area available for childcare, through the erection of the 
garden room, enables this private business to sustain an improved service to the local 
community. This is because it is located in a built-up area and, having been operating 
since 2011, it is a well-established business, which strongly indicates that there is a 
demand for the public service provided. As such, it is in accordance with the aims and 
objectives of the SOLP 2035 Policy CF2. The business also continues to provide 
employment for the occupiers. This means that it is in line with SOLP 2035 Policy 
EMP2, which aims to provide a range of premises with flexible business space, 
including those suitable for small businesses. Officers attribute significant weight to the 
community and employment benefits. 
 

6.17 
 
 
 
 

Officers consider that the significant benefits to the community and employment are 
sufficient, on balance, to outweigh the moderate harm to residential amenity. Due to 
these exceptional circumstances, it is necessary to impose a planning condition to 
ensure that the planning permission is temporary in so far as once the childcare use 
ceases, the structure is to be dismantled and removed from the land. 

  
6.18 Community Infrastructure Levy 
 The garden room is not CIL liable due to providing less than 100 square metres in 

floorspace. 
 

6.19 Pre-commencement conditions - None 
 

Page 55



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 The development results in some harm to the residential amenity of the existing 

occupiers of No.46 through total loss of the rear garden and loss of light and outlook to 
the rear aspect of No.44. However, under these exceptional circumstances, this harm is 
outweighed by the community and employment benefits. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 Grant Planning Permission 

 
 1 : Temporary building – removal on cessation of business use 

2 : Restriction on number of children 
3 : Hours of operation 
 

 

Author: Paul Lucas 

Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Tel: 01235 422600 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 56

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


46 King James Way

Plan Produced for: WhitehorseDC

Date Produced: 08 Nov 2020

Plan Reference Number: TQRQM20313164133482

Scale: 1:1250 @ A4

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 OS 100042766

Appendix A

Page 57

Agenda Item 10P20/S2504/FUL



46  King James Way

Plan Produced for: whitehorseDC

Date Produced: 08 Nov 2020

Plan Reference Number: TQRQM20313171353104

Scale: 1:500 @ A4

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 OS 100042766

Appendix B

Page 58



P
age 59



Existing Parking

Plan Produced for: SODC
Date Produced: 12 Jul 2020

Plan Reference Number: TQRQM20194181549420

Scale: 1:200 @ A4

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 OS 100042766

P
age 60



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 1 

 

 
 APPLICATION NO. P22/S0023/HH 
 APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER 
 REGISTERED 24.3.2022 
 PARISH HENLEY-ON-THAMES 
 WARD MEMBER(S) Ken Arlett 

Kellie Hinton 
Stefan Gawrysiak 

 APPLICANT Mrs Catherine Notaras 
 SITE Pantiles, Elizabeth Road, Henley-on-Thames, RG9 

1RA 
 PROPOSAL Variation of conditions 3 (Plan of Car Parking 

Provision) and 5 (Drainage) on application 
P20/S4111/HH.  Parking changed to 2 parking 
spaces on existing drive and submitting the details 
as shown on drawing CN30 drainage plan.   
 
(Proposed two storey side/rear extension and two 
new front dormer windows) 

 OFFICER Davina Sarac 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to the Planning Committee as the applicant’s partner is 

District Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak who lives at the property also. The officer’s 
recommendation is for approval as set below in this report. 
 

1.2 The application site, which is shown on the plan attached as Appendix A, is occupied 
by a detached, two-storey red brick and brown tiled dwelling, located within the built-
up limits of Henley-on-Thames. The site does not lie within any designated area. 
 

1.3 This application is made under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 to vary conditions 3 (parking provision) and 5 (drainage) of application 
P20/S4111/FUL, following unacceptable details being submitted as part of the 
discharge of condition application (P21/S2621/DIS) and in order to regularise the 
development in order to allow the following changes: 
 
Condition 3 changes: 
 
Change from providing 4 car parking spaces on site to 2. 
 
Condition 5 details: 
 
Showing details of new drainage retrospectively that were not provided under the 
P21/S2621/DIS application. 
 
A copy of the proposed plans are attached as Appendix B and other documentation 
associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s website, 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.  

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Henley-on-Thames Town Council – No comments received.  

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/S0023/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 2 

South -Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – No objection.  
 
Neighbour Representations – letters received from 3 neighbouring properties objecting 
to the reduction of the off-street parking with the following comments: 
 

 For many years the occupiers of the application site park at least one car on the 
road always. Reducing the parking from 4 to 2 will make this worse with the 
increase in number of bedrooms.  

 The lime trees seem be unaffected by the road, so it does not seem logical that 
the trees are used as an excuse to create additional off-street parking.  

 It seems reasonable to provide at least one more space which would be a 'safe' 
distance from the nearest tree and would hopefully lead to parking on the 
property rather than the road. 

 The garden of the property is large enough to accommodate 4 parking spaces 
without damaging the trees. Adjacent properties who have multiple parking 
spaces even closer to the trees have done no damage to them whatsoever. 

 It must be recognised that the arboricultural report was carried out in July 2021, 
long after building work commenced at Pantiles and no parking plan agreement 
had been reached as requested in the pre commencement conditions. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P21/S2621/DIS – Refused (14/12/2021) 

Discharge of conditions 3 (Plan of Car Parking), 4 (Tree Protection) & 5 (Drainage) on 
planning application P20/S4111/HH. 
Proposed two storey side/rear extension and two new front dormer windows 
 
P20/S4111/HH - Approved (05/02/2021) 
Proposed two storey side/rear extension and two new front dormer windows. (Amended 
Plans received 18 December 2020, showing removal of new entrance gates, detached 
garage and carport, the front dormers windows have been reduced in size, and the side 
extension changed from gable end to a hipped roof). 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 Not applicable.  

 
5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE 
5.1 Development Plan Policies 

 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 (SOLP) Policies: 
DES1  -  Delivering High Quality Development 
DES2  -  Enhancing Local Character 
DES6  -  Residential Amenity 
DES7  -  Efficient Use of Resources 
DES8  -  Promoting Sustainable Design 
H21  -  Loss of Existing Residential Accommodation in Town Centres 
TRANS2  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility 
TRANS5  -  Consideration of Development Proposals 
 

5.2 Joint Henley and Harpsden Neighbourhood Plan  
 DQS1 - Local Character 

 
5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

 South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) 
  
5.4 National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

 

Page 62

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/S2621/DIS
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S4111/HH


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 3 

5.5 Other Relevant Legislation 
 Human Rights Act 1998 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Equality Act 2010 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 When assessing section 73 applications the Council can only consider the original 

condition and the reasons for applying the condition; new conditions can be attached 
but only in so far as they apply to the original condition. If the Council decides that 
planning permission should be granted subject to the same conditions as those subject 
to which the previous permission was granted, they should refuse the application. 

 
6.2 Paragraph 015 of NPPG notes where an application under section 73 is granted, the 

effect is the issue of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original 
permission, which remains intact. It further advises that to assist with clarity 
decision notices for the grant of planning permission under section 73 should also 
repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission, unless they have 
already been discharged. 
 

6.3 It is not intended to go through all of the planning issues that were assessed in 
connection with the principle of development at the site given that this has recently 
been considered and determined to be acceptable.  The planning report setting out all 
of those issues and the appropriate assessments can be found under reference 
number P20/S4111/FUL. 
 

6.4 The main issues to consider in relation to this proposal are: 
• Whether there has been any material change in site circumstances or 

planning policy in the interning time between the previous planning 
permission and now. 

• Conditions. 
• Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
 
 
 
6.5 

Whether there has been any material change in site circumstances or planning 
policy in the interning time between the previous planning permission and now. 
 
Since Planning permission was granted, the development has been completed and this 
application seeks retrospective permission to vary the conditions that were not 
complied with prior to the commencement to development.  
 
The submitted parking plan that was submitted as part of the discharge of condition 
application was not acceptable from an arboricultural perspective and therefore this 
condition could not be discharged and agreed to at the time of the discharge of 
condition application. The submitted Arboricultural Report (ref: BS/473 Date: 
16/12/2021) shows the root protection areas (RPA) for trees T001 and T002 as shown 
on the Tree Protection Plan. Tree T002 lies opposite Pantiles and the majority of the 
tree roots are located with the grassed area in front of Pantiles. The hard surfacing of 
the road on the west of the tree has influenced root growth further to the east within the 
front grassed area of Pantiles. Having discussed the proposal with the Council’s 
Forestry Officer, it is concluded that no additional hard surfacing within the existing 
grassed area should be allowed as this contains the rooting system for the lime tree. 

Page 63



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 17 May 2022 

 4 

This has led to a conflict between protecting the existing tree and providing additional 
off street parking. 
 

6.6 The Local Highway Authority has assessed the proposal to reduce the number of off-
street parking from 4 spaces to 2. It is concluded that the revised parking plan subject 
to this application meets parking guidance and is considered acceptable, despite the 
previous application seeking additional parking. 
 
It is considered that should any displaced vehicles as a result of the development be 
located onto the public highway, this is unlikely to significantly increase the risk to 
highway safety in this location. Given the characteristics of the carriageway, vehicular 
traffic and speeds are considered to be relatively low. After investigation and reviewing 
the supplied documents, the Highway Authority has raised no objection to this 
application. 
 

6.7 
 

Therefore, whilst it is regrettable that the development provides less parking than 
previously had been sought, the conflict with the protection of the existing tree leads 
Officers to consider that, on balance, the existing driveway which provides parking for 2 
vehicles is considered to be acceptable in relation to the extended dwelling. . 
 

6.8 The location of the new drainage is under the existing driveway and away from the 
roots of the lime tree and therefore is considered acceptable.  
 
Conditions 

6.9 There are no new conditions considered necessary as the development is already 
complete.  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

6.10 There are no changes to the floorspace for the approved scheme which was not CIL 
liable. 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 Planning permission is granted because the proposed changes to the number of 

parking spaces is unlikely to significantly increase the risk to Highway Safety in this 
location and will therefore accord with development plan policies. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
8.1 To grant planning permission subject to the following condition 

 
 1. Development in accordance with the approved plans  

 

 

Author: Davina Sarac 

Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk 

Tel: 01235 422600 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Appendix A

Page 65

Agenda Item 11P22/S0023/HH



drwgno.LOC-001

Appendix B

Page 66



SITE/BLOCK PLAN

CN20

DATE

DRAWING No.

SCALE

REVISION

Telephone READING (0118) 9691684
READING, BERKSHIRE. RG5 4PE.

RICHARD FENN DESIGNS LIMITED

E-Mail : architect@ntlworld.com

11 HARRIER CLOSE, WOODLEY, 

A

Appendix B

P
age 67

SAV_AllenT
Line

SAV_AllenT_1
Textbox
Relates to P20/S4111/HH



EXISTING/PROPOSED DRAINAGE

CN30

DATE

DRAWING No.

SCALE

REVISION

Telephone READING (0118) 9691684
READING, BERKSHIRE. RG5 4PE.

RICHARD FENN DESIGNS LIMITED

E-Mail : architect@ntlworld.com

11 HARRIER CLOSE, WOODLEY, 

P
age 68


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	8 P21/S5302/FUL - 3 Beckley Close, Woodcote
	Appendices A-B
	Appendix A
	Appendix B.1
	Appendix B.2
	Appendix B.3
	Appendix B.4
	Appendix B.5
	Appendix B.6


	9 P21/S3252/FUL - Hobbs Red Lion Moorings, Thameside, Henley on Thames
	Appendix A
	1 Location & Block Plan drwgno 001
	2 Site Plan Existing drwgno 002
	3 Site Plan Proposed drwgno 005B
	Sheets and Views
	136_005


	4 Elevation Existing drwgno 003
	5 Elevation Proposed drwgno 006B
	Sheets and Views
	136_006


	6 Elevation & Section Existing drwgno 004
	7 Elevation & Section Proposed drwgno 007A
	Sheets and Views
	136_007




	10 P20/S2504/FUL - 46 King James Way, Henley-on-Thames
	Appendices A-B
	A Location Plan drwgno LOC001a
	B Block Plan drwgno BLO001b
	B3 Floor Plans and Elevations Existing and Proposed drwgno 670459
	B4 Parking Plan Existing drwgno OP001


	11 P22/S0023/HH - Pantiles, Elizabeth Road, Henley-on-Thames
	Appendices A-B
	A - Site Plan
	B2 Location Plan drwgno LOC-001
	B3 Block Plan Proposed drwgno CN20
	B3 Drainage Plan Existing & Proposed drwgno CN30



